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  [10.59 am] 

 

SIR HANSEN:   All right, thank you everybody and welcome to the second 

pre-hearing meeting this morning dealing with repair and rebuilding of 

multi-unit complexes. The Judge will conduct this, as Deputy Chair, 5 

this pre-hearing, so over to you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Good morning everyone. Just in terms of what we have to 

cover today, I’d hope to be able to complete this pre-hearing meeting 

within an hour at least, we want to be able to finish by midday if not a 10 

little bit before then, but I don’t think that should be too much of an 

ask.  

 

 In terms of the Panel for today, Ms Dawson will assist on things along 

the way, and if you’re just coming in now and you haven’t filled the 15 

register in, just do that please at some stage so that we can know who 

has attended and where the interests are. 

 

  [11.00 am] 

 20 

 When you speak on issues according to the agenda, please say your 

name and who you represent. That gets recorded on the transcript, 

which is an important part of keeping record here. So in terms of the 

agenda, I take it everyone’s got a copy of the agenda, I think there’s a 

copy at the door, people who haven’t got a copy, they should grab one 25 

now. It’s headed pre-hearing meeting agenda, it’s got the Independent 

Hearings Panel name at the top, hearing three, repair and rebuilding of 

multi-unit complexes.  

 

 So just in terms of that agenda, if anyone wants to put anything else on 30 

the agenda that isn’t there now, please do that. I will add one myself, 

which is in regards to cross-examination and timing of that, and we will 

put that in as item 8A just before other matters.  

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Can I just make a statement, that - - - 35 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:    Could you say your name? 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Yes, I am Helen Broughton, I am representing the 

Community Board, Riccarton-Wigram, but I also put in a personal 40 

submission myself on an issue under 14.2, I don’t seem to be on that 

list. I’ve spoken to Paul, and he’s happy for me to be here at this 

hearing. So it may be I have just been left off of the list. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, well, the Panel is happy to have you here, both in 45 

your personal capacity and professional. 
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MS BROUGHTON:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   You are most welcome.  

 5 

MS POTTER:   Carolyn Potter, Spreydon/Heathcote Community Board, could 

we have communication (INDISTINCT 2.06) please? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Communication? Thank you, we can. So Carolyn Potter, 

thank you Ms Potter – sorry, Ms Potter, who do you represent again? 10 

 

MS POTTER:   Spreydon/Heathcote Community Board. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Spreydon/Heathcote, thank you.  

 15 

 All right, are there any other agenda additions anyone would like to 

make? 

 

MS ROBINSON:   (INDISTINCT 2.30) on the list, it might’ve been because 

we had (INDISTINCT 2.38) before the Southern Response 20 

(INDISTINCT 2.42). 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you, Ms Robinson, and you represent IAG? 

Thank you. Anyone else? 

 25 

MS VISKOVIC:   Sir, Ms Viskovic for Christchurch City Council. Can I just 

please also add the timing of provision of legal submissions. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. Thank you. So we’ll make that 8B and 8C is 

communication.  30 

 

 All right. Ms Viskovic, you, on behalf of the Council and CERA, have 

put in a joint memorandum, just as a point of process, if I could remind 

the Council and CERA that the best form for putting a memorandum 

before the Board is to do it as a memorandum of counsel, if counsel are 35 

representing a particular party, counsel should communicate with the 

Panel by memorandum. Obviously individuals who don’t have counsel 

don’t need to worry about that, they can do it in their own name, but 

that’s what the Panel would like from here. That point was also made at 

the last pre-hearing meeting.  40 

 

 But putting that aside now, I wonder if we could have you speak first 

on the issue of scope, and what I might do there as your memorandum 

suggests a scope of matters for repair and rebuild, and we’re mindful 

that for those that don’t fully understand the order in council and our 45 

terms of reference, but there are certain procedural obligations the 
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Panel has to follow through in terms of timetabling being one, and so, 

in accordance with those obligations we must hear these matters as a 

matter of priority, that’s what the Panel is directed to do, and that sets 

the pattern of what we must do.  

 5 

 Bearing that in mind, the joint memorandum suggests a set of topics for 

this particular hearing as the joint position of the Council and CERA, 

and perhaps we’ll open the floor on that first rather than ask you, 

Ms Viskovic, to speak to that, because I think it’s relatively clear on the 

face of it, does anyone have any issue with those matters of proposed 10 

scope for the hearing that they wish to raise? 

 

  [11.05 am] 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Sorry, this is a layperson’s one, but you’re touching on 15 

the 14.2 and 14.3.2, so can I just clarify, are they actually part of this? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, have you got the memorandum in front of you, 

Ms Broughton?  

 20 

MS BROUGHTON:   No, I haven’t. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Ms Viskovic, do you have a second copy of the Council’s 

and CERA’s memorandum to provide? 

 25 

MS VISKOVICH:   Yes, sir, we do. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   What we might do is, I won’t take that question now, but 

we’ll come back to it, give you a chance to have a bit of a read through 

that and then you may be able to put that question again. 30 

 

 Does anyone else have any issues as to the proposed scope? 

Mr Fowler? 

 

MR FOWLER:  Yes, thank you, sir. I appear for Southern Response 35 

Earthquake Services Limited, and beside me in attendance is Mr Ken 

France, who is inhouse counsel for Southern Response. I today have 

filed a notice of change of representative because the original 

submission on this matter was filed by Amanda Douglass of Wynn 

Williams, so there is a change to be made in that respect, which is with 40 

the Hearings Panel. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

45 
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MR FOWLER:   But in relation to this matter, perhaps I could note that there 

has been a discussion as recently as yesterday with the City Council 

and Southern Response regarding possible changes to the plan which 

could be affected to implement the relief that Southern Response is 

requesting, and following that discussion what I have done is prepared 5 

a brief document which identifies some additional provisions which we 

think would need to be altered in order to implement the relief that 

Southern Response is seeking, and I have prepared a brief document 

this morning which I have circulated before the Hearing, but which I 

could hand up now which identifies the additional provisions that we 10 

think would need to be addressed.  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   What’s your understanding of the position on that from 

the Council and CERA as the signatories of the last memorandum? 

 15 

MR FOWLER:   In respect of the Council, yesterday’s meeting was 

constructive and productive. The situation really is that both the 

Council – CERA wasn’t at that meeting, but they have been copied in 

in the report on the meeting and the position is essentially that both 

parties understand the need to amend the plan to cater for the difficulty 20 

that is being encountered by insurance companies, not just Southern 

Response but the insurance industry generally that are involved with 

the residential rebuild programme here in Christchurch, and of course it 

stems from the difficulty of defects and titles on the subdivision 

consent - - - 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Fowler, you don’t need to go into that, I think there’s a 

general understanding of that, but just in terms of the additional 

provisions you are proposing, perhaps circulate the memorandum. I just 

really wanted to get a sense of whether or not there is any contest 30 

between parties on that. We can find out from counsel shortly. 

 

MR FOWLER:   Certainly. No, there’s no contest as between the City Council 

and our office in relation to these additional provisions. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. All right, well, if you could circulate that now. 

 

MR FOWLER:   I wonder if I might approach? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes.  40 

 

SIR HANSEN:   When you say, Mr Fowler, it’s been pre-circulated, I take it 

you haven’t circulated it to the lay submitters? 

 

45 
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MR FOWLER:   That’s correct, I’ve only just prepared it this morning and I 

just passed it around during the adjournment, so it hasn’t been 

circulated, but I am happy to file this electronically after today’s 

hearing. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well, we want to give opportunity for everyone here to 

respond to everything discussed here, so I think the first priority is to 

make sure that everyone here has a chance to read it and respond to it. 

Hopefully it’s not a very long memorandum.  

 10 

MR FOWLER:   Everyone who was here at the adjournment prior to the 

meeting should have a copy, there may be one or two who haven’t, and 

if they haven’t then I - - - 

 

J  [11.10 am] 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Has anyone not got a copy of Mr Fowler’s note? All right, 

Mr Fowler could you arrange, please, for that to be copied and 

provided to those that put their hand up, and I think what we will do is, 

we will allow them opportune – anyone an opportunity to raise any 20 

issues of it, obviously we want to be able to make progress here, we 

don’t scored on this right now so if we could do that quickly. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Are the track changes underlined? 

 25 

MR FOWLER:   Yes, that’s correct. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Can we make sure they’re in colour in the future? 

 

MR FOWLER:   Certainly. 30 

 

SIR HANSEN:   I’m sure they probably were before they were photocopied 

but it makes it very confusing. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  So those – yes, if you – for those representatives here, just 35 

feel free to read through that and if you want to raise any issues say so, 

don’t be too concerned that you’re raising them out of order because 

we had no chance to read it, but just in terms of settling scope for the 

moment though, is any party who has had a chance to read Mr Fowler’s 

note have any issues with the proposal and (INDISTINCT 1.19), 40 

which Mr Fowler has explained, are in the same category in the sense 

that his client (the insurance industry) in terms of the issues they are 

encountering and the rationale for this matter to be heard early, Mr 

Fowler’s position is, these are other provisions need to be added into 

complete the picture. 45 
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 The Council doesn’t oppose it – and we’ll hear from CERA if they’ve 

got a position on it – Mr Allen, do you have a position on behalf of 

CERA now? 

 

MR ALLEN:   Sir, yes we’ve just read through the provisions now. Just have 5 

very briefly, in terms of A, B and C, question as to “specificity” and 

some of those – as long as it’s confined and not generally applicable, 

then we think it’s okay and can work within the parameters, but just 

want very clear scope setting there, so we don’t open up a whole 

avenue of argument that will derail or potentially derail and extend the 10 

timeframes for the process going through on priority matters - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:   - - - so that’s for A, B and C; D and E no issue. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:   F, I’ve got a question mark which I’m assuming – oh, F and K - 

- -  20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   As I understand it the track changes are - - -  

 

MR………:   The underlying. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Are the underlying ones, so D and E, I understand is the 

status quo. 

 

MR ALLEN:   Yes. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   F is one of the new proposals from Mr Fowler’s client. 

 

MR ALLEN:   My – we’re just commenting now, sir, that apparently outline 

development plans don’t apply to these proposals because it’s only 

repair. 35 

 

MR FOWLER: Perhaps I might be able to assist in that respect, it’s a 

consequential change, it’s simply shifting the provisions regarding an 

outline development plans to a different location within the plan but 

making no change whatsoever to the wording of those provisions. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  So I’ve just noted “consequential, shifting location, not 

changing content”, is that correct? 

 

MR FOWLER:   That’s correct, and it’s the same for the matter K and this list 45 

as well. 
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JUDGE HASSAN: Yes, okay, “consequential, shifting location and not 

changing content”, so with those clarifications, Mr Allen, does CERA 

have any issue with F or K? 

 5 

MR ALLEN:   Sir, my understanding is, is that, the - - -  

 

MS……….:  It’s primarily an issue for the broader subdivision. 

 

MR ALLEN:   They’re primarily an issue for the broader subdivision rather 10 

than the repair, but – so just the concerns for broadening of the scope 

now - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you. 

 15 

MR ALLEN:   - - - but as long as the scope doesn’t broaden out, then the 

Crown’s - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I mean - - - 

 20 

MS DAWSON:   Would that be the same with H as well, which is - - -  

 

MR ALLEN:   Well - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well - - -  25 

 

MS DAWSON:   Would it be the same as A, B and C, keep it down to this. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Fowler is there any clarification as to the scope that 

your client intends in regard to H, it seems a very broad category. 30 

 

MR FOWLER:   It’s a minor change to essentially ensure that non-complying 

activity rule doesn’t apply to the restricted discretionary standard 

regarding subdivision with respect to multiunit and cross lease titles. 

 35 

  [11.15 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR FOWLER:  In broad terms what’s proposed is to create more carefully a 40 

specifics category of a subdivision with respect to this type of situation 

and then there’s some consequential changes required in order to effect 

that alteration to the structure of subdivision provisions. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 45 
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MS DAWSON:   And, Mr Fowler, the specific changes to these track changes 

was set out clearly in Southern Response’s original submission? 

 

MR FOWLER:   Yes, they - - -  

 5 

MS DAWSON:   Or are they consequential things that have been discussed? 

 

MR FOWLER:  I would need to check that but I understand that they are set 

out in some detail and in fact, there are a number of other provisions 

that are addressed in that submission which we’re not going to pursue 10 

so this is the smaller version. 

 

MS DAWSON:   But (INDISTINCT 0.59)? 

 

MR FOWLER:   Yes it is, all the thing is scope if that’s what you’re asking. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   What we’ll do is we’ll take any further clarification on all 

your other changes and then we come back through and decide what we 

want to do, whether we will be in a position to do it today or not once 

we’ve heard from others. 20 

 

 Are there any other clarification – well perhaps – back to you, Mr 

Allen, what are your views regarding D at the foot of the page? 

 

MR ALLEN:  Sir, in terms of D it’s to – again, to the extent that it doesn’t 25 

broaden out the scope, then we’re okay with it. But it - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:   - - - just keeping in focus. 30 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So just in terms of understanding that scope issue, I mean 

clearly the Board is very – the “panel” I should say, is very mindful of 

the fact that, where submitters have made submissions on these 

provisions for purposes that don’t specifically pertain to repair, rebuild 35 

in regard to multi units and the particular problem that is generated 

correction for this to be heard now, the panel’s very mindful to ensure 

those parties have their fair opportunity to be heard on their relief, not 

compromised by the fact that matters are heard on these narrow 

premises first and decisions are made. So those decisions don’t 40 

predetermine how the panel will later assess other submissions. 

 

 And, Mr Fowler, in an ideal world, this hearing should be as contained 

as possible so that there isn’t a need to actually replicate consideration 

of matters, but I take what you are saying to the panel is, from your 45 

client’s perspective, you’ve endeavoured to just simply confine to those 
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things that are necessarily part of the need to determine things early and 

only those things at this stage in order to deal with repair/rebuild in 

terms of the purpose of this hearing. 

 

MR FOWLER:  Sir, I can say to you that that is absolutely correct. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes. So before we – and those things can be expressed and 

will be properly expressed in the minute that comes from this meeting, 

but before we go further with this matter, are there any other parties 

that want to comment on this or any of the other matters in the list that 10 

are the “original list” if you like, of the Council and CERA’s in terms 

of the matters of scope. 

 

 Anything from either of the Community Boards or Individual 

Submitters? 15 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   (INDISTINCT 3.51). 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 

 20 

MS BROUGHTON:   (INDISTINCT 3.54-57) 2.2.1, (INDISTINCT 4.01). 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, 14.2. – permitted activities. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Which we – sorry - - -  25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And are you speaking on behalf of your Community 

Board or on your personal capacity, Ms Broughton? 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Well I guess – I mean, we’ve just – but it’s just come to 30 

sort of our attention. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN: Are you speaking for yourselves and the Community 

Board, I just want it clarified. 

 35 

MR………:   Speaking for yourself. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:  Okay, I’ve got Mike Mora here, you’ve got a list of – I 

don’t even know what the legal firm wants actually, 14.2.2.1. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well any party – just so that you understand - - -  

 

MS BROUGHTON:   I’m not sure - - -  

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 45 
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MS BROUGHTON:   - - - what, what he’s asking. 

 

  [11.20 am] 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, just so that you understand the process here a little 5 

bit. Every person that’s made a submission can only address their case 

in terms of their submission, in fact you only can have a case if you’ve 

made a submission and you have to stay within the scope of what you 

ask for in that submission, that is a rule that applies to everyone so 

when Mr Fowler puts these things forward, Ms Dawson before raised a 10 

question with him regarding that and he clarified his answer which was 

to the effect that all of these things are raised within the scope of their 

submission and do not go beyond the scope of their submission. 

 

 When he is asking for things on his list to be addressed, the Panel can 15 

only deal with it within the scope of matters that his client raised in the 

submission - - -  

 

MS……….: Can I just say if you look at what he has said here at 14.2.2.1- - -  

 20 

MS……….:   I do not think we have got that, we have just got that page. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   We have just given it to you. 

 

MS……….:   If you see the P24 at the end that is the key to it. 25 

 

SIR HANSEN:   We are talking about the document that has just been handed 

to you. 

 

MS……….:   This one, okay. 30 

 

SIR HANSEN:   If you look at the bottom after with respect to chapter 14 then 

go to and the point is you can make it again. 

 

MS DAWSON: So rule 14.2.2.1 as you say but the bit that is relevant to 35 

Southern Response essentially only relates to provision P24 and you 

need to think have you submitted on that, are you interested in P24 

which is a particular provision which relates to this matter. 

 

MS……….:   You cannot comment. 40 

 

MS BROUGHTON:  No, we have not, and again if we can just check that 

because the residential amenity is something we are very strong on 

P17. 

 45 

MS DAWSON:   This is the same provision. 
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MS BROUGHTON:   I will just have a quick look, yes, we have probably got 

elements of P17. 

 

MS DAWSON:   No P17 is just the next slide is 14.3.2.1 not 221. 5 

 

MS BROUGHTON:  Do you want to move on a wee bit and come back to me 

because we are very keen to make sure that the sort of amenity is 

protected as much as possible? 

 10 

MR……….:  Within the scope of your submission you are entitled to be heard. 

 

MS……….:   I will just have a quick check if you do not mind. 

 

MR……….: In terms of the timing of this, Ms Broughton, I want to 15 

reemphasise to you what I said a minute ago that although the panel 

must make decisions because the panel is directed to make decisions 

according to a timetable on these matters of temporary earthquake 

recovery. You will not be compromised if you have made a submission 

on a more general thing about amenity, about the same provisions you 20 

can address that in due course when that part of the hearing comes 

around and the Panel will listen to your submission in order to make its 

decisions. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Okay, that is fine. 25 

 

MR ………..:  The fact that the decisions have to be made early does not 

preclude the Panel from revisiting decisions.  Is there anything else on 

scope before we move on because we do need to move on? 

 30 

MR ALLEN:  Sir, just maybe briefly I am not sure if we finalised our position 

on H. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Yes, non complying minor change was the comment, non 

complying activity rule not to apply to restricted discretionary activity, 35 

subdivision multi and it is cross leased that is what I have noted. 

 

MR ALLEN:  I have got a note here, sir, that actually that it does not, that it 

will not fall to non complying activity status. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So you concern is - - -  

 

MR ALLEN:   The concern is it is not applicable. 

 

45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:  The panel is not in a position to make expansions to the 

list at this stage based on what we have got in front of us, but Mr 

Fowler you do need to urgently I think clarify what is intended and I 

would urge you to confer further on it and provide the Panel with a 

memorandum which clarifies the scope of matters that have been put 5 

forward for addition.   

 

 That has to be done urgently so the Panel can then take that into 

account in order to make the directions it needs to make as to scope and 

we will do that in a minute that follows this pre-hearing meeting. 10 

 

 I am starting on the premise that the Council and CERA have come up 

with a proposition for scope which no parties appears to take issue with 

and that your client is asking for that to be supplemented.  The Panel’s 

mind is not made up against it at all but we do need to have a greater 15 

degree of confidence as to what is on the list, why, what the limitations 

to it are and where there are points of difference with other parties 

those need to be explicit in the memorandum for the Panel to make a 

call. 

 20 

  [11.25 am] 

 

 Clearly the Panel does not want to cut the boundaries of what it needs 

to inquire into too short and only to achieve half a result on what needs 

to be decided or partial result but on the other hand it does not want to 25 

have in the inquiry anything unnecessary given the importance of 

trying to keep it as contained as possible.   

 

 If I could ask you to turn your mind to that and discuss matters for 

instance with Mr Allen and provide through the secretary a 30 

memorandum which gives us proper clarity, would you be in a position 

to do that by a couple of days from now? 

 

MR FOWLER:   I understand the position and I would be happy to do that. 

 35 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, thank you. 

 

SIR HANSEN:  Well you will probably be able to resolve it with the others 

before you leave today I expect Mr Fowler. 

 40 

MR FOWLER:   Yes, I think it is just a matter of clarification beforehand. 

 

SIR HANSEN: And the linkage is within the very narrow ambient of what this 

topic is. 

 45 

MR ……….:   I am confident that it is but it is a matter of explaining that. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   I think if we make it as crystal clear as possible so that we 

can then reflect what we need to reflect on in our directions and we will 

issue those as soon as we can but obviously we do not want to dwell on 

that.    5 

 

 Okay, well that is where we will leave that for the moment and in terms 

of just moving from there to the proposals for the hearing itself Ms 

Viskovic in terms of your estimate appearing time would you think 

about a day is about enough? 10 

 

MS VISKOVIC:  Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you, other counsel have got, thinking about their 

expert witnesses or whatever they are going to call would you see a day 15 

as a realistic time bearing in mind we are going to have to discuss 

limitations on cross-examination time and everything else as we are 

doing for other hearings? 

 

MR ALLEN:   Yes, sir, the Crown agrees with the day assessment. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Are there any issues with laysubmitters on any of this, in 

terms of hearing time so looking at when a hearing might be scheduled 

the week commencing the 12th of January we are trying to 

accommodate three hearings.  We have allocated the 12th of January as 25 

a tentative hearing date for what we dealt with earlier this morning on 

temporary activities and we would roll this topic into that day as well. 

 

 The tentative day would be the 12th of January and we will work back 

from that in terms of our directions, any issues or concern, obviously it 30 

cuts into what is often holiday time but that, I am afraid is life and we 

have to deal with things in this time. So on the basis of the 12th of 

January is the likely hearing date, going to the other end of the scale do 

parties seek mediation to narrow issues?   

 35 

 Are there any parties who would like the opportunity for mediation 

there will be a mediator available next Wednesday and Thursday, 

Commissioner John Mills for the Environment Court will he here, he 

will be assisting mediation on the temporary activities matter, Ms 

Viskovic what is your view? 40 

 

MS VISKOVIC:  Yes, the Council supports mediation and had understood that 

Commissioner Mills was available next week and is happy. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, Mr Fowler? 45 
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MR FOWLER:  Yes, likewise, I think some good progress could be made on 

this matter at mediation. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Mr Allen? 

 5 

MR ALLEN:   Sir, fully support those comments for mediation next week. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, okay, Ms Broughton starting with you. 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Yes, we support the mediation. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, are there any other parties, I am sorry. 

 

MS ROBINSON.  Yes, sir, I think that IAG would want to be present at 

mediation. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Okay, all right, so a notice will go out on that, do parties 

who are calling expert witnesses see any value in witness 

conferencing? 

 20 

MR FOWLER:   I do not think it requires expert witnesses at this stage. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Relatively simple. 

 

MR FOWLER:   Yes, it is more of a drafting exercise in my view. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, so then we come from assuming mediation in the 

hearing we made preparations for this morning, we discussed the 

concept of an issues’ memorandum being coordinated through the 

Council, Ms Viskovic, for the Council to be given responsibility to 30 

confer with other parties and as per the practice that is often seen in the 

Environment Court for a memorandum to come to the panel which 

identifies those matters that remain residual issues are those matters 

where they have narrowed in scope, where there are points of 

agreement and where there are points of disagreement and isolating out 35 

for the panel assistance where those differences are with regard to 

respective parties. 

 

  [11.30 am] 

 40 

 Now that’s – rather than the exercise of requiring parties to further 

specify relief, which wouldn’t seem warranted for this particular 

hearing, the panel’s proposition, the parties would be to make a 

direction along those lines for an issues’ memorandum to come in prior 

to the exchange of evidence starting with the Council – Ms Viskovic, 45 

do you have any issue with that? 
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MS VISKOVIC:   No sir, we have no issue with that. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  So you’ll be in a position to take the lead on that, confer 

with other counsel and, and, and lay representatives to actually get that 5 

document together? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Thank you, any other comments on that before we set a 10 

timetable for that? 

 

 So Monday the 15th of December, how does that sound? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   That sounds fine. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, any concerns with that? Parties are expected to 

work with the process here, to aid the efficiency of this process, to 

cooperate with Ms Viskovic in putting that document together and she 

will be under pressure to put that together by the 15th of December so 20 

when she is in touch with you please, please be as cooperative as you 

can. 

 

 If it turns out that there is an issue which didn’t feel was fairly covered, 

of course you can raise that with the Panel, but you do that in a formal 25 

way by putting a note to the Panel, a memorandum to the Panel through 

the secretariat, following that issues memorandum coming in, and 

there’ll be a direction set for that, you’ll have to do it within a couple of 

days and I’ve got Wednesday the 17th of December. 

 30 

 So once that’s in, then we would have – I would propose a sequential 

exchange of evidence, and I’d be interested in views on this. The 

Council’s evidence coming in on Monday the 22nd, Submitter evidence 

including rebuttal of the Council’s evidence, Friday the – now I got to 

get these dates right - - -  35 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Yes, Wednesday the 7th. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. Friday the 7th - - -  

 40 

SIR HANSEN:   Wednesday the 7th. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Wednesday the 7th – I’ll get that right eventually. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Of January. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Of January – what year? Wednesday the 7th of January 

and the Council’s rebuttal evidence coming in the following Friday the 

9th - - -  

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  - - - all right? Any questions on that? 

 

MS……….:   (INDISTINCT 2.52) 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, Wednesday the 7th of January the submitters 

would put their evidence in, if they have any – you don’t have to but if 

you have any. 

 

 Ms Broughton, I wonder if I could invite you to comment first, when it 15 

comes to the concerns that you have and also on behalf of the 

Community Board, is your concern about the amenity value – the 

amenity impacts of multi units at a general level or is it specific to the 

provisions that are proposed to deal with the temporary earthquake 

response work which for instance the insurance industry has concerns 20 

with? 

 

MS BROUGHTON:  Yes. I guess when we looked at this earlier we thought 

“it’s not us”, because we haven’t been involved in temporary activities, 

but then when we looked at the submitters, we would – they had a list 25 

of submitters, and so under 14.2 the Riccarton/Wigram Board, I think 

I’m probably there on that list, I’m not, but I could – I should be and 

then there was the Riccarton Bush/Kilmarnock Residents Association. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes. 30 

 

MS BROUGHTON:  And so, they were there and so that’s, that’s why we 

actually came along, because we’re on a list of submitters. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, totally understandable. 35 

 

MS BROUGHTON:  Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I totally fully understand that, and Mr Mora is any 

comments- - -  40 

 

MS BROUGHTON:   Mike Mora’s the Chairperson and I’m Deputy Chair. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so what you said, it speaks for Mr Mora as well, any 

comments adding to that? 45 
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MS POTTER:   I’d love to make a comment, but we haven’t been provided any 

advice. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, so does it help you to know that the panel by having 

– the panel has to make these decisions, and it has to hear and 5 

determine these things on the programme earlier on temporary, 

emergency response, like earthquake response issues to do with multi 

units, it has to do that and when it does that its decisions will not 

compromise your capacity to present your concerns, for instance on 

“amenity effects” in regard for instance “multiunit dwellings” within 10 

the scope of your submission at a later stage, your position is protected. 

Does that give you comfort? 

 

  [11.35 am] 

 15 

MS POTTER:   Mm'hm. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   And that can be expressed and made clear in a minute that 

comes from this meeting. 

 20 

MS POTTER:   Thank you. 

 

SIR HANSEN:  This is limited only to the repair and rebuilding of multiunit 

complexes, but because of the way this is being done, chapter by 

chapter and the priority given by the order in council and our terms of 25 

reference, to be safe, we really needed to include everybody that it 

submitted multiunit dwellings, so this in fact maybe of no concern to 

your particular organisations at all, it will be the broader and wider 

amenity values around multiunit and by not taking part in this process it 

will not in any way prevent you from making full submissions when we 30 

get to that later. 

 

MS POTTER:   Yes. 

 

SIR HANSEN:  And I’m sure the friend of the submitter who’s here today can 35 

expand on that with you before you go so that you feel quite 

comfortable if you decide not to take part in this particular hearing that 

your rights are protected and your community rights are protected or 

later. 

 40 

MS POTTER:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  All right, that’s good. So, as per the approach which the 

Panel has been taking in other hearings and it’s very important that we 

maintain discipline in this area to ensure we don’t perhaps time spill 45 

overs with hearings, the proposition I put now is, that for expert, if a 
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party wishes to cross-examine some other expert or witness they have 

to give notice to the panel and this will be set out in a minute, and there 

is no right to cross-examine, it’s a question of seeking leave. And my 

proposal would be to – as we had done before – to set a time limit and 

my proposition would be, would 15 minutes per witness, per expert 5 

witness as well, be okay. 

 

 Any concerns, any issues? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   The Council has no issue. 10 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   No issue from the Council. Mr Fowler? 

 

MS VISKOVIC:  There’s none from myself. I would like to comment on 

evidence timetable if I may that now - - -  15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, certainly, well do so now I think, Mr Fowler. 

 

MR FOWLER:   The timetable is rather challenging for submitters because it 

suggests that we will only receive the evidence from the Council on the 20 

22nd that might be 5.00 pm on the 22nd. A lot of offices close on the 

23rd of the 24th, don’t open until the New Year and yet we have our 

evidence due by the 7th. 

 

 Appreciate that clearly we need to make progress and matters have to 25 

be more quickly than - - -  

 

SIR HANSEN:   I’m sorry to cut you off, Mr Fowler, have you read the terms 

of the order in council and the time limits on us? 

 30 

MR FOWLER:   Yes. 

 

SIR HANSEN:  We can’t indulge the closing time of legal offices. 

 

MR FOWLER:  What I’m suggest – I appreciate that and that’s why I 35 

mentioned that, we are in a priority, you know, we are a priority 

hearing, accept that entirely. But I do wonder whether it might be 

possible to fashion the direction so that the Council were to lodge its 

evidence on the Friday or the Thursday before the weekend so that then 

counsel and witnesses can look over that over the weekend and make 40 

some sterling progress as early as possible in the week following. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  And also you’re aware, aren’t you, that the website is 

where the evidence can be posted and according – looking at the 

hearing’s directions in there as to posting on the website, the Council 45 

evidence will go onto that website. 
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 Well, you put the proposition and I will ask the Council for their view 

on it. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   We have no issue – the Council has no issue with providing 5 

evidence on the Thursday or Friday prior. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN: So to assist, are you saying Thursday the 21st of 

December? 

 10 

MS VISKOVIC:   Either the 18th of 19th of December. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The 18th of the 19th of December. 

 

MR FOWLER:   I’m obliged. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  I see - shall we say Thursday the 18th of December, does 

that address your concern, Mr Fowler? 

 

MR FOWLER:   Yes, thank you. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right then, so we’ll just make an adjustment to that. 

 

  [11.40 am] 

 25 

MS VISKOVIC:   Sir, I understand that a similar evidence exchange timetable 

was set this morning for temporary activities and if I can just clarify 

that the Council would be happy for the evidence in relation to 

temporary activities to be filed on either the 18th or 19th of December. 

 30 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes okay.  Ms Robinson could you take a note of that for 

the minute and you can make an adjustment and in terms of the cross-

examination time limit proposed at 15 minutes per witness any concern 

or issue? 

 35 

MS………..:   No, sir. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   I think that has covered everything, no sorry I beg your 

pardon so we now go to cover the expert witnesses so we will go 

through the agenda, one, two through to, we have covered everything 40 

through to eight and I have got 8A, issue 8A which I have not got a 

very good note of cross something, sorry my note is not very good.  

Has anyone got a better note of what was agenda item 8A? 

 

MS DAWSON:   Communication. 45 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   We will take 8C. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   And there was also timing of legal submissions. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Timing for legal submissions first.  We realise we did not 5 

cover that this morning either so we might have to, Ms Viskovic what 

is the proposition you want to put on that, presumably consistent with 

the directions made on strategic - we cannot remember what we 

directed, but we would like to be consistent. 

 10 

MS VISKOVIC:   The Council is proposing that legal submissions just be 

presented on the day of the hearing rather than circulated in advance in 

accordance with the hearing procedures.  We are just conscious that if 

we were to accord with the hearing procedures we would be filing legal 

submissions before we have seen evidence. 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well it is a little bit different in a sense of strategic.  It is 

relatively simple and confined, I would have thought it was going to be 

fine to allow you a bit of leeway there.  It does not really, so just for the 

laypeople here with the proposition being put is when the lawyers want 20 

to make their legal submissions we want to keep them brief of course. 

 

 You are saying do them in writing, you can speak to them on the day 

but you would not have to provide the written submissions until the 

first day of the hearing is that what you are suggesting? 25 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   That is correct. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   When it comes to, for instance, a submitter case so the 

Council goes in with its written submissions and it presents its position 30 

and speaks to its submissions what is the proposition in regard to 

submittters in response that they do the same thing when they present 

rather than on the first, because I want to hear what you have to say 

first and effectively respond to it. 

 35 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The Panel wants the opportunity to pre-read so that we do 

not have counsel boring us or taking up unnecessary time on things that 

we can pre-read and you can speak to the main points so my suggestion 40 

is that the Council does it and provides it to the Panel at say a time on 

the Friday to give the Panel enough pre-reading time. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   On the 9th? 

 45 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Sorry? 
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MS VISKOVIC:   Are you proposing that legal submissions be filed on the 

9th? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Well it just, Ms Viskovic, the issue is if the submissions 5 

turn up on the day of the hearing and the Panel has not had a chance to 

read them and we end up spending an hour of time or whatever on 

things that we did not need to spend on whereas if we have the 

opportunity to pre-read it, it just gives us the extra efficiency bearing in 

mind we must finish on the day.   10 

 

 If the suggestion was that the Council provided its legal submissions 

that it would just speak to in presenting its case it would only highlight 

the main points, perhaps have an allocation of time, let us say 15 

minutes or so to speak to and the submissions would be provided the 15 

day before. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Which is the same time as the rebuttal. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   The same time as rebuttal. 20 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, come in with rebuttal. 

 

MS VISKOVIC:   Yes, that is fine. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   All right, and for other parties that want to present legal 

submissions I suppose the same regime would be appropriate that on 

the day before you present during the hearing, well effectively it is only 

the one day.  I had to think about that, getting ahead of myself.  I 

suppose that is where we must give some leeway, it is with the 30 

submitters, because they won’t have had a chance to respond. 

 

  [11.45 am] 

 

 I think if we just set a time limit on presentation, you’ll just have to 35 

manage yourselves and use your judgement because we won’t let you 

read them out, you’ll have to just tell us what the main points are, and I 

think in a hearing as confined as this, it should be sufficient for parties 

to have about 15 minutes to present their position to us. So we will set a 

direction around that, in fact I’m inclined to make it 10 minutes, 40 

perhaps 15 for the Council, 10 minutes for other parties, does that 

sound about right? 

 

MR FOWLER:   I think the submitters from the insurance sector should be 

given a fair opportunity to speak to this matter because it is of 45 

significant importance to them. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   So what would you suggest, Mr Fowler, as a time limit?  

 

MR FOWLER:   The same amount of time as the Council. 

 5 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Would 15 minutes be enough? 

 

MR FOWLER:   15, maximum would be 20. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, we’ll set it at 20 minutes. 10 

 

MR FOWLER:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We’ll just set it at 20 minutes and that applies across the 

board.  15 

 

 Now, communications? 

 

MS POTTER:   Well, I think probably (INDISTINCT 1.16) what was going to 

happen today until yesterday, and I don’t think the problem lies with 20 

you, I think the problem lies with our general ignorance and our lack of 

support about communications, but some of this is being resolved by 

you telling us the dates and times and process right now, so that’s a 

help. 

 25 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, it is a challenging process, and you have our 

sympathies. As lay people your only opportunity to be heard in a single 

process, I urge you to look at the website on a regular basis, it’s a bit 

funky, but it should have everything on it. But more importantly, 

perhaps for lay people – remember Mr Cowie over there, have you got 30 

his contact details, he’s there to help you with the process. This is early 

days, we hope to slightly improve some of this as we go, but if you are 

having any difficulties or have any questions, Mr Cowie is there as a 

friend of the submitter.  

 35 

 Mr Cowie, is there any comments you want to make? 

 

MR COWIE:   Yes, sir, I have had a discussion with Ms Robinson between the 

two hearing stages today about some of the matters I raised earlier, and 

certainly the intention is to make the website more user friendly for lay 40 

submitters around times and dates in particular, so we can do that in 

terms of including staff both in the for submitters and notices and 

directions by making all that advice present in the procedures as we 

discussed earlier, and also I think including some of it in the frequently 

answered questions. So I am going to get back to Ms Robinson with 45 

some specific suggestions in the next day or two. 
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JUDGE HASSAN:   Thanks very much, Mr Cowie. I think you’ll find 

Mr Cowie an excellent resource, he’s very experienced and he can 

channel things for you. 

 5 

MS POTTER:   Thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Are there any other issues, IAG, any issues you wanted to 

raise? 

 10 

MS ROBINSON:   No, thank you. 

 

MR FOWLER:   Sir, I just have one brief point of clarification, how do you 

envisage the witnesses presenting their evidence, in a summary form 

based on the written statement that they’ve filed in advance? 15 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So this is covered, I think, in our general hearings 

procedures. We don’t want any witness to read their material. 

 

SIR HANSEN:   No, it’s on the website, if you look at it, it’s pre-read.  So it’s 20 

a high level summary, anything additional that would be appropriate in 

the normal way, introduction, the usual – you’ll be familiar, Mr Fowler, 

with what is expected. 

 

MR FOWLER:   Yes. 25 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, it’s very much as per the Environment Court process, 

for instance if something arises you’re entitled to put a proposition to 

the relevant witness on something arising since they wrote their 

evidence. 30 

 

MR FOWLER:   Yes, sir. No, that’s helpful, thank you. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, any other questions or anyone wanting to make – I 

had an item 8A, which is cross-timing of dot, and I have no idea what 35 

else that meant, so I’m taking it was just - - - 

 

SIR HANSEN:   Timing of cross-examination, wasn’t it? 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Timing of cross-examination, which we’ve already dealt 40 

with, cross-examination timing, so we’ve covered that.  

 

 All right, well, thank you everyone for your attendance. 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 11.49 AM ACCORDINGLY 45 

 


